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The financial report is presented in two sections: Introductory and financial. The
introductory section is designed to introduce the reader to the report and includes this
transmittal letter, The City's organizational chart, and a list of principal officers.

The financial section begins with the independent auditors' report. The auditors’ report
discloses the opinion of the independent auditors with regard to the presentation of the
financial statements and internal controls. This section also includes the MD&A, the
Basic Financial Statements and Nofes that provide an overview of the City's financial
position and operating results, the Combining Statement for non-major funds, and other
schedules that provide detailed information relative to the Basic Financial Statements.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis
o accompany the basic financial statements in the form of the Management's Discussion
and Analysis (MD&A). This letfer of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A
and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Nevada's MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditor.

Profile of the City

Nevada, Missouri was incorporated in 1855 when it also was chosen as the county seat
for Vernon County. It is located in the Southwest region of Missouri and the center of
Vernon County. Nevada is the largest city in Vernon County with a 2010 Census
population of 8,386. Before its incorporation, Nevada was known as both Fair View and
Hog-Eye. The latter was considered crude and the former has already been taken as a
post office name. The name was changed to Nevada after Nevada City California by
circuit and county clerk DeWitt C. Hunter who had tried his luck in the California Gold
Rush of 1849.

During the Civil War in 1863, the entire town was burned by a company of federal militia;
Nevada (along with F{. Scott, Kansas) was an area of major conflict and border wars
throughout the historic War Between the States. After the war ended, the City officially
incorporated and changed the formal name of the community to Nevada. The community
saw the arrival of the Missouri-Kansas-Texas (Katy) railroad in 1870, and welcomed the
Missouri Pacific railroad in 1880.

The City of Nevada provides a comprehensive range of municipal services normally
associated with a municipality including highly rated police and fire protection, public
works services, parks and recreation facilities, and general administrative services, The
- City also provides a public golf course (Frank E. Peters Golf Course) and water and
sanitary sewer services, accounted for in the financial statements as a Parks Fund
(governmental funds) and Water and Sewer Fund (business-like funds) respectively.

Utility service in the City is mixed between public and private companies. Water and
" sanitary sewerage utilities are operated by the Water and Sewer Department of the City.
Water and sewer rates are established to meet the total revenue requirements of the
utilities including operating costs and capita! expenditures. Natural gas is supplied by
Empire District Gas and electricity is supplied by KCP&L. Traditional and cellular phone
services are provided by several companhies.

vi
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The following table sets forth average annual unemployment figures for Nevada and
Vernon County compared to the State of Missouri. This information is a good indicator of
economic activity in Nevada and other areas within the State.

UNEMPLOYMENT RATES
Yeat Nevada Vernon County MO Statewide United States
2015 5.2% 5.0% 5.0% 5.3%
2014 5.3% 5.6% 6.2% 6.2%
2013 5.5% 5.9% 6.7% 7.4%
2012 5.8% 5.9% 7.0% 8.1%
2011 7.1% 7.2% 8.5% 8.9%

Long-Term Financial Planning

The City of Nevada prepares a five year Capital Improvement Plan which includes
proposed amounts for constructing, maintaining, upgrading and replacing the major
components of the City's infrastructure. Funding sources, identified and prospective, are
included in this plan giving the City a tool for meeting the needs of the City.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The preparation of this report was made possible by the hard work of the staff of the City
of Nevada Finance Department. The contribution made by each staff member is
sincerely appreciated. Special thanks are extended to the City's Independent Certified
Public Accountants for their assistance and for the professional manner in which the firm
accomplished the audit. [ would also like to thank Mayor Leonard, the City Council and
City Manager J.D. Kehrman, for their continued interest and support in planning and
conducting the financial operations of the City in a professional and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Kristie Modlin
City Treasurer
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| TROUTT, BEEMAN & €0, PC.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS -~ 0

-To the Honorable Mayor:
- and Members of the
" City Councit - o
;Crty of Nevada Mlssoun

Report on the Frnancral Statements

N, We have audrted the accompanylng ﬁnancrat state ents_., f the govern __enta tivities, the
" business-type activities, each major fund, and. the. aggregate remaining fund mfon_natron of the
. City of Nevada, Missouri (the City), as of and for the year ‘ended December 31, 2015, and the
"+« related notes to the financial statements, which _cotlectrvely comprise the City's basic fi nancral,_' :
R statements as tlsted m the table ot ccntents';ﬂ . o

o Manage ent’s Responsrbtlrty for the Fmancra ' tatements:.
S r;':The Crty 3 management is responsmte for the preparatron, nd fair. presentatton_ of these f nancral
S statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted? in the t_._lmted States of
. America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant -
o the preparatlon -and fair. presentation of fi nancial statements that are free from mater:al, R
o -i,mrsstatement whether due to fraud or error. S

Audttor's Responsrbrl:ty

- .-:Our responsrblllty is to express op:nlons on these f' nancral statements:'based_- on our: audlt' " We" .
.- -conducted .our. audit in accordance with- audrtlng standards ‘generally accepte_d in the: Umted
e :--_-.’States of Amenca Those standards requ;re that we plan_=and pertorm-the-‘ audrt to obtaln :

An audlt :rncludes perforrmng procedures t_o obtaln audit - evrdenoe -about  amour
-{;dzsclosures in the f nancral statements Th_e procedures selected depend on the audrtor's

f--statement whether due to fraud or error :
- considers internal control relevant to the entrtys preparatlon and falr
s statements in order to desrgn audrt procedures that are appropnate 1 th |
: als luating the ppropnatenessf
':.".f;of accountrng poirmes and the reasonableness:- of sngnrf can accounting estimates made. by-_
5 management as well as evaluatlng the overall presentat:on of the financial statement.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Nevada, Missouri, as of
December 31, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement
System ~ Schedule of Funding Progress, and Budgetary Comparison information on pages 3
through 10 and pages 59 through 63, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it fo be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with managements
responses fo our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Nevada, Missouri’s basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining non-major fund financial statements, and non-major fund budget schedules
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and budgetary schedules are
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the other information, which. consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

NZMJMM %/ G, Pe.

Harrisonville, Missouri
July 8, 2016
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o Goiremmental Fund sfatéments tell how ge'neral govemment services like public
safety, street, health and welfare, and parks, trails, and storm water were financed in
the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

o Proprietary Fund statements offer short-term and long-term financial information
about the activities the City government operates similar to a private business.

The financial statements also include notfes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial
statements. In addition to these required components, a section is included with combining
statements that provide further detail about our non-major governmental funds, each of which are
added together and presented in single columns in each of the basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position
includes all of the government's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and
expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when and how they have
changed. Net position, the difference between the City’s assets and liabilities, are one way to
measure the City's financial health or current position.

» Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position are indicators of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

» To assess the overall health of the City, consideration should be given to additional factors
such as changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City's roads.

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into three categories:

¢ Governmental activities: Most of the City’s basic services are included here, such as public
safety, roads and bridges, parks and recreation, and general administration. Sales taxes,
property taxes, charges for services, and State and Federal grants finance most of these
activities.

e Business-iype activities: The City charges fees to customers to help cover the costs of
certain services it provides. The City’s only active business-type fund is the Water and
Sewer Fund. The Landfill fund is open to record the cost of landfill closing requirements.

o Component units: The City currently has no situations or relationships which would be
classified as component units.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant
funds, not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting mechanisms that the City uses to keep track
of and segregate specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes.

* Some funds are required by state law and/or by bond covenants.
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Total net position for the City at December 31, 2015, was $32,972,863 with $13,675,856
attributable to business-type activities and $19,927,007 attributable to governmental activities.

At the end of fiscal 2015, the City had $40,640,156 invested in a variety of capital assets,
including land, buildings, construction in progress, law enforcement equipment, heavy equipment
for the maintenance of roads and bridges, as well as the addition of infrastructure. This was an
increase of $2,037,235 from fiscal 2014 and is primarily due to the capitalization grant for drinking
water construction in process.

The largest portion of the City’s net assets represents the net investment in capital assets, which
is restricted for the purpose of providing services to the City of Nevada citizens. Restricted assets
are not available for future spending. Because they are not available for future spending, the
resources needed to liquidate the related debt must be provided from other sources, primarily
sales and property taxes.

Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Governmental Activities. Table B (see next page) presents fiscal 2014 and 2015 revenues and
expenditures for the primary government as they are reported in the Statement of Activities in the
basic financial statements. The revenues and expenditures include the Governmental Funds
(General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Projects Funds) and Proprietary Funds
(Water and Sewer Fund and Landfill Fund).

Combined sales and occupancy taxes increased 1% compared to fiscal 2014 reflecting marginal
retail growth compared to the 7.3% increase from fiscal 2013 to fiscal 2014. Sales and occupancy
taxes are 44% of revenue in the governmental funds.

Property taxes for general purposes decreased 1.1% from $1,034,488 in fiscal 2014 to $931,109
in fiscal 2015. The decrease is due to receipt of a prior year pilot tax in fiscal 2014 and the 3M
Chapter 100 cost of issuance revenue. Real estate assessed valuation increased 0.92% while
personal properly assessed valuation increased 4.6%. Property taxes are 15% of revenue in the
governmental funds.

Business-type Activities: Water and Sewer charges for services increased 5.5% and operating
expenses increased 2%. Increased revenues and a minimal increase in expenditures resulted in
an operating gain of $375,048.
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government’s net resources a\failéblé fOr'speh_ding at the énd of the fiscal yé'ar'.' The following
information is supplementat to the information presented in the previous section (Table B).

At the end of fiscal 2015, the City of Nevada reported a combined fund balance of $3,796,183 in
the Governmental Funds, a decrease of $350,111 from the prior year, Of the total combined fund
balance, 14% is unassigned. This is the portion of fund balance which serves as a measure of
current available financial resources.

The restricted fund balance represents resources not available for spending or those on which
legal restriction have been placed. Assigned funds are not availabie for general use however this
is a less formal level of reasoning for the limitation than seen in restricted funds.

The General Fund, Street Fund, Parks Fund, and Parks Construction Fund are the City’s four
major governmental funds. The other major fund is the Water and Sewer Fund, a proprietary or
“business-type” fund.

General Fund - The General Fund accounts for all transactions not required to be accounted for in
other funds. As the City's major operating fund, the General Fund accounts for ordinary operating
expenditures financed primarily by property taxes, sales tax, franchise tax, and charges for
services, The General Fund completed the year with a fund balance of $731,002, decreasing by
$694,462 from the prior year. The decrease is due to the completion of construction projects. The
fund balance is 74% unrestricted while the remaining 26% is non-spendable, restricted, or
assigned.

Street Fund — The Street Fund is used to account for collection of the one-half cent Transportation
Sales Tax, other motor vehicle related revenue items and to record the cost of maintaining and
improving the streets of the City. The Street Fund completed the year with a fund balance of
$1,644,521 which is an increase of $150,864 from the prior year.

Parks and Recreation Fund — The Parks and Recreation Fund is used to account for one-half cent
sales tax, cigarette tax, user fees, and to record the cost of operating, maintaining, and improving
park facilities. The fund balance is $91,854 which is an improvement over the prior year fund
balance of negative $94,964. The operating deficit of $78,516 was offset by a transfer from the
General Fund.

Parks Construction Fund — The Parks Construction Fund is used to account for proceeds of the
one-half cent Parks Sales Tax through December 31, 2014. The fund balance is $275,299 and
proceeds will be used complete remaining voter approved projects.

Water and Sewer Fund — The Water and Sewer Fund is a proprietary fund used to account for the

sale of water and sewerage treatment service and the cost associated with water treatment and

distribution and with sewerage treatment and collection. The net position of the Water & Sewer

Fund is $13,850,006 and increased $445,049 during the year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

. No amendments Wére made to the original budget. The General Fund budgeted expenditures
- were $6,621,924 and actual expenditures were $5,894,778. Actual expenditures were $727,146



| ':-‘?tess then budgeted due to postponement of the publlc safety burldmg demolrtron and constructron"- :
-f.ofthe parkmg tot S L i

Actual revenues were $170 825 more'than _budgeted revenues_prlma ily due to an insuran
-.;;_surplus distribution and. grant relmbursements-”"l‘hree ' at 'gorre here :udget varled from_'-
--;actual are as follows e

e Other revenues exceeded budget by $1 06"93 5.
e l_ntergovernmental exceeded budget by $99,792
e Llcenses and permrts fell short by ($28 658)

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION -

___e'._Caprtal Assets The Crty of Nevadas lnvestment in capltal: assets _govemmental and__--
£ ;{busrness-type actlwtzes for fiscal 201 5 is $40,640,156 net of accumulated__f-depremation This -
22 includes land, burldlngs improvements, equ:pment roads, bridges, and construction in. progress
©ooand represents an increase of. $2 037 235 or 5 3% from fi scai 2014. f‘Majoricapﬂal:assets funded_;_;}
-:f_-'-'fth|s year are as follows o S = = :

e Publlc Safety Burldlngs completed $4-,-779 631

e Sprrng Street Sidewalk project - ‘completed $134

-~ s Police and Fire equipment and vehrcles $167 55

e Streetimprovements $490,997 :

S :‘f;North and South :nterceptor replacement in 'progress $1 492 870
S ;_-'_f _.-Publrc Works equrpment and vehrcles $407 661 -

921

S ﬁ;_ _'-Addrtlonal rnformation on the C|ty’s caprtal_""ssets can be fou:.:

' _;Debt Adm:mstrataon The Clty of Nevada hadfvarlous forms of debt' durtng_f‘ scal 20152 Table C
EEat: -:_below shows the C:ty’s outstandlng debt by type : ' .

Tablec .
Oulstandlng Debt_-'._:__-_.--':' :
SRR Governmental 5 Buslness-type
e T T T :_-2014 2015 2014r---:..-.
{_'__':_'__.fGeneraI oblrgatlonbonds $ ey 56692 $ | 52478 $
. “Certificates of parlrcrpallon : 4900 000 4735 000 s
' Sewerage revenuebonds e S
" Notes payahle | : 66750 }-'-'-.__-'.:!-39653_'
- Capitalleases - B51973 0 B13218
Compensatedabsences 151 567 170246

...mal R
am 2015
56692 s 52473
4,900,000 4735 000
9,410,000 w 229,800
' _66'750 39,653
988422_;-5
:_._171 123”:'

;'Tolal I 5726982 $ 5610595 $ ?é..'é;sgg,sse'-:-:$.-'-'--10'.605,'sa1 $15326540 $ 16216476.__




The City's debt for governmental activities decreased 2% in fiscal 2015 from $5.726,982 to
$5,610,695. The decrease was the result of making scheduled payments on existing debt offset
by the addition of capital leases in the General Fund.

Debt for business-type activities increased $1,006,323 or 10.5% due to the addition of sewer
revenue bonds and capital leases.

Primary government debt increased $889,936 or 5.8%.
Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 6.
2015 BUDGET AND TAX RATES

o The City’s fiscal 2015 General Fund budgetfed revenues decreased 2.9% from the fiscal
2014 budget while budgeted expenditures decreased 27%. Actual revenues in the general
fund increased 0.4% compared to fiscal 2014 actual revenues. Actual expenditures
decreased 31% compared to fiscal 2014 actual expenditures resulting from the completion
of construction projects and position vacancies.

» The City has a one cent general sales tax, one-half cent parks sales tax, one-half cent
transportation sales tax, one-half cent capital improvement sales tax, and a three cent
occupancy tax. Tax revenues increased 1%.

o The City’'s property tax levies total $0.8778 per $100 of assessed valuation which is
unchanged from the prior year's rate. The levy is comprised of two components: General
Fund levy of $0.6778 and Library levy of $0.2000.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for our
citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, creditors, and other interested parties, and also to show
our accountability for the monies entrusted o our care. If you have questions about this report or
need additional financial information, contact Kristie Modlin, City Treasurer, City of Nevada, 110
South Ash, Nevada, Missouri 64772.
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. CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI
 STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
- DECEMBER31,2015 -

o _."ASSETS . T
- Pooled cash and investmenls
“Cash and mves!ments—resmcted

Taxes reoelvable, ngt R

Accounts receivable - T

- Speclal assessments reeelvable

- ‘Bond diseount. net of amorﬂzaﬂon

- Inventories .

'Prepaid expenses

‘Net pension asse

- Capital assels: PR

-7 Land, improvements, and oonstmctnon ln progress

. Contnbuted capital :
. Bulldings 0
L Plant struclure, and Iines L
L 'jEQqumeutand vehtcles e
-::Infras!ructure Bt T
‘ f- Less accumulated depreclation LA
* Total capital essets = -'
Total assets

N ;DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURGES L
. Penslon :
R Total assets ancl dererred uurﬂews of reseurces
e -LIABIL[TIES RRE
{1 Accounts payable and eeerued expenses G
~ 0" Salaries and benefils payable
B Z-Liebillﬁes payable from restncled assets

11183518
amoe

21696204
25,203,804

*. Band premium, net of amorlizahcn
-Bonds, capital jeases, and contracts
-Compensated absences :
‘Accrued inferest : S
Duein morethanoneyear S
- Bonds, capltal leases, and contracts EEER SRS
..~ Bond premium, net of amortization .
: __.-Compensated absences S
" OPEB :
_-_-Postclesure oosts
' ::Tota! Iiebﬂlhes ;

o -DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
" Properiy laxes |-
..t Pension -
__-._Land!ease e : e
T Total deferred inﬁows of resources

'.-NET POSITION
.“:'Netinvestment in eepltal assels

*‘Reserved for prepald Items i

© . Reserved for inventories " .
e '.:Restrictedfer R

: Parks and recreation

:Dabt servlee o
:_Slreet :
: Eeonomic development
EER .Policeandcouﬂ o
B Unrestrtcted R
o Totel net poemon oy

32,972,863 =

$ 19,297,007

Total Elablllllee. deferred inﬂows end net position :

'S 25499160 50707305

See accompanymg notes :
o 11 _ s
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CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2015

General Fund Street Fund Parks Fund
ASSETS :
Pooled cash and investments $ 421,602 L 1,533,512 $ 46,579
Cash and investments-restricted 81,492 - -
Taxes receivable, net 326,833 66,588 72,543
Due from other funds - - -
Special assessments receivable - - -
Cther receivables 65,333 27,150 8,564
Inventories - 30,280 -
Prepaids 112,007 15.221 23,236
Total assels % 1,007,267 $ 1,672,751 3 150,922
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 84,370 $ 21,642 $ 16,708
Salaries and benefits payable 87,997 6,588 12,560
Due to other funds - - 298,800
Payable from restricted assets 9,743 - -
Tota liabilities 182,110 28.230 59,068
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Advances of property taxes 94,155 - -
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaids 112,007 15,221 23,236
Inventories - 30,280 -
Restricted:
Capital projects - - -
Library - - -
Parks and recreation - - 68,618
Airport - - -
Debt service 75,746 - -
Street - 1,367,410 -
Economic development - - -
Police and court 5,746 - -
Assigned fo,
Capital projects - 231,610 -
Unassigned 537,503 - -
Total fund balances (deficit) 731,002 1,644,621 91.854
Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances $ 1,007,267 $ 1,672,751 $ 150,922

" See accompanying notes.
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cOnstructlon

B z’_j-’s”" 278 299'j'f___-;_

e 370

i 15695

157 028 T

. 275299

o

i 3 —— : -_....._ 275,299.. IZ ik N

= $ 275299 $

Seeaccompanymgnotes R e




C!TY OF NEVADA MISSOURI

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2015

Fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current
financial resources and therefore are not reported in this fund
financial statement, but are reported in the governmental activities of

the Statement of Net Position.

Certain other long-term assets are not available to pay current period
expenditures and therefore are not reported in this fund financial
statement, but are reported in the governmental activities of the
Statement of Net Position. This amount represents the net of

discounts and premiums on iong-term obligations:
Net premiums and discounts

Net pension asset

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in the governmental funds,

but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due.

Deferred pension inflows and outflows are not included in the fund
financial statement, but are included in the governmental activities of

the Statement of Net Position:

Inflows
Outflows

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and are not included in the fund financial statement, but are inciuded

in the government-wide statements:
Bonds and capital leases
Compensated absences

OPEB

Net Position of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net

Position

See accompanying notes.”
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3,796,193

18,943,952

59,617
1,544,126

1,603,743

(23,867)

(22,909)
790,759

767,850

(5,440,349)
{170,248)
{180,269)

(5,790,864)

19,297,007







CH'Y OF NEVADA, MiSSOURI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE —

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and pemits
intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fees and fines
Invesirment eamings
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

General government
Municipal court
Public transportation
Public safely
Emergency management
Animal control
Planning and zoning
Culture and recreation
Street
Capital outlay
Pebt service:

Principal

Interest and other charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from capiial lease
Capital contributions
Sale of assetls
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances (deficif) - beginning

Fund balances (deficit) - ending

General Fund Street Fund Parks Fund

$ 4,007,689 3 810,884 $ 800,273
86,781 - -
223,178 342,276 -
188,887 - 331,733
123,170 - -
7.603 11,402 -
132,255 3428 6,024
4,769,563 1,167.990 1,138,030
1,325,269 - -
120,886 - -
145,130 - -
2,456,053 - -
8,778 - -
135,893 - -
118,383 - -

- - 1 )1 25 |831

- 426,533 -
1,151,334 691,350 75,221
233,301 11,566 14 447
201.851 1,163 1,047
5894778 1,130,612 1,216,546
{1,125.215) 37,378 (78.516)
155,685 - -

- 150,000 -

205 1,189 -
563,389 20,049 285,657
(288,426) (57,752} {323)
430,753 113,486 265334
{694,462) 150,864 186,818
1,425,464 1.493 657 {94 964)
$ . 731,002 $ 1,644,521 $ 01,854

See ab’cbmpanying notes.
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123170
25173;:

280625
207 765

_(74851)

1 092 212

__ors20 s 1053517 “ﬁ-:' : 796,193

e . See accompanying notes
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CITY OF NEVADA MISSOURI

REGONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACT!VITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

‘Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds: $ (350,111)

Amounts reporied for governmental activities iﬁ the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report outlays for capital assets as expenditures
because such outlays use current financial resources. [n contrast, the
Statement of Activities reports only a portion of the ouflay as expense. This
is the amount by which capital outlays, which are over the capitalization
threshhold, exceeded depreciation in the current period:

Capital outlay 2,114,671
Depreciation expense (949,855)
1,164,816

Governmental funds report bond proceeds as current financial resources. In
contrast, the Statement of Activities treats such issuance of debt as a liability.
Governmental funds report repayment of bond principal as an expenditure.

In contrast, the Statement of Net Position reports repayment as a reduction to
long-term liabilities. This is the amount by which proceeds exceed

repayments:
Other financing sources-proceeds from capital lease (155,585)
Repayment of principal 280,651
135,066
Governmental funds report premiums and discounts as other financing
sources. In contrast, those items are capitalized on the Statement of Net
Assets and amortized over the life of the bonds on the Statement of
Activities. This is the net amount of premiums, discounts, and amortization,
Amortization of premiums/discounts (8,078)
(8,078)
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and these are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:
OPEB (25,133)
Accrued interest not reflected on governmental funds (5,033)
Pension expense (92,024)
Compensated absences (18,679)
{140,869)
.Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 800,824

See accompanying notes
20 : :



OITY OF. NEVADA MISSOURI
s _STATEMENT OF NET: POS!TION

S -_ASSE‘I'S..-.
2 Current assets. R : 3
. Pooled cash and investments i
. Cashand investments—reslncted'
_'.Recelvab!es : L
- Billed
S Unbllled

Other reeeivab!es
- inventories
: s .Prepaid expenses

- Total current assets
Non-cun'ent assets: .
-.Net pens!on assel

Capital assets: :

;" Construction in progress :

- Contributed capital .

- Land and improvements
L :Improvements other than buIIdlngs
*. Buildings

S 1'.492..869'5-“ -
69,300
89,783
11163 516
: 19344710
. Equipment and vehlctes _ 3173661
Tota[wpltalassetsateest R R 35_ 333,840 .
‘Less accumulated depreciation A -{13,637,§§§_1 S
Capital assets, met 721,696,204
Tutal non-currentassets SR L e 3 B0 BB

-:_ : DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
. Pensien ST HGE AR LRIt
S Total assets ancl deferred ourﬂows of resources': :

.:'-_LIABI!.ITIES' NNy
Cun‘ent fiabilities:
.~ Accounts payable :
+'. - Salaries and benefits payable :
- Accrued interest payable .. -
_ '.'_'Custemerdeposlts ;"
o Deferred revenue o .
-~ "Bond premium, net of amort:zatlen: :
"1 Compensated absences '
. “Capltal lease obligation . .
. :'Bonds, notes, and loans payab[e
: . Tatal currerit liabilities :
. Non-current fiabllities: o AL
-Bond premium, net of ameruzation RRREES
Capitel [ease obhgation :
“Post closure cosls : .:
._-:Bonds, notes, and Ioens payab!e '
: Teta! non-gurrent. Ilab:mies

1315 216_-5_. e

153648
279880

R --*:'10,-1_ 0B,328 - i eg
e 1l4zssM.

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Land Iease o

11459133.': :

e '-;-..f._Net investment in capltai assets L
/80413

" Restricted for inventory and prepaid ltems R e S

SR Resmctedfordebtsemee : 132676 R S i

' Unrestncted L S T s AT 2477884 T (74.480) 2,00§,Z34"'-' =
Total net posltlon L i --1‘% 850006 R M T A B0Y T

: 13,675,856_ :

'.'__-_Total I_|ebiIitl_e_s. d_efen_‘re_c!_ mﬂewé,"_a'n_d net_besitibn":-:':- _' _Q ,._-'s* 25273 550""__.-_31'._ 2828 ';__'3:-;$--.- 25.__293,175'-* e

See accompanylng notes i '_




' STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

REVENUES,
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel services
Contractual services
Materials and supplies
Maintenance and repairs
Insurance
Utitities
Depreciation and amortization
Administration

Operating gain {loss)

- CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI -

o PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Interest income
Miscellaneous income
Sales tax

Bond Issuance Costs
Interest expense
Payments in lieu of tax
Gain on disposal of assets

Non-Operating gain

Net income before transfers and capital contributions

Capital contributions

Transfers in
Transfers out

Increase in net position
Total net position - beginning

Total net position - ending

Water and
Sewer Landfill Total

$ 4.433,637 $ - $ 4433637

415,131 - 415,131

1,613,319 - 1,613,318

28,899 - 238,899

362,432 - 362,432

56,747 - 56,747

335,596 - 335,596

828,567 - 828,567

417,898 37 417.935

— 4,058,589 37 — 4.058626

375,048 (37) 375,011

276,798 - 276,798

17,290 22,443 39,733

808,384 - 808,384
(59,122) - (59,122)
(456,668) - {456,668)
(159,221) - (159,221)

4 686 - 4 686

432 147 22.443 454,590

807,195 22,406 829,601

69,300 - 69,300

34,847 - 34,847
(466,293) - {466.293)
(431,446) - (431,4486)

445,048 22408 467.455

13,404,957 (196.558) 13,208,401

$ 13,850,006 $  (174,150) $ 13,675,856

' See acéompany?hg notes.
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ERT GITY OF NEVADA MlSSOURl ' o
STATEMENT OF CASH. FLOWS -. PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3, 2015 e

L 'Watsrand

'CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVETIES
Recewed from customers e

- Payments to employees and fnnge beneﬁts

- Payments for operations .. 0

= Other rsce:pts (paymenis) -

Nst cash pmvsded by cparatmg acnvmss

3 'E: CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
e Net u‘ansfers to other funds : -

Nst cssh used by noncapital f nanc:ng actwltles : (431.446').'-:

. .-CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTlVleES
S -Capltal oontnbutlons recsived_ S e _
.- Proceeds from capital debt . - Sl ol . Lty 612 938
' 'Acquisition and construction of capital assets i SR ERSAL '(1 560,715) .
a -Pnnc:pal paid on capitaf debt and leases - L (604,048)
!n:erest paid on caputa! debt and leases - (ABT 568}

69,300
1,612,938
(1 560,715)
(604,948)
(467.568) -

(9§0,9931 --;

Nst cash used by capttal and related fi nancmg actwities R - 1 95@@931 :

E -"CASH FLQWS FROM INVESTlNG ACTIVITIES
Investment mcoms -

Net cash prowded by Envestmg actlv:tles

Net mcrease in cash and cash equwalenis

: __Cash and cash equwalents beginmng cfyear PR

' _Cash and cash equ:vatents end of year '. S

o Reccncmatzcn of operaung :ncome (Ioss) to net cash prcwded
: by nperating activities, =+ :
Operatlng income (Icss)

SRR Adjustmants to reconc:le operatmg mcome to net cash "
provnded by opsratlng activities: SR '

Dsprec[ahon and amcrtlzat:on expense SR
- Miscellaneous nonoperatmg income R
Sales tax and miscellansous nonoparatmg revenuss
Changes in assels and Ilablhtzes i -

. 'Receivables net "
"Pensions :
7 Deferred mﬂcws
"'.'_Inventones o
" Prepaid items . B
i Accounts payable and accrued llabllmes -
“ ' Post closure costs - o
© o Meter deposits -

= -.Ccmpensated absences

| 828567

43 354 :
(147 589)
7,100

Tcta! adjustments

1 858 500

Net cash prowded by operatlng actlvmes o i _$ 4,869,306 .

_ . See sccompanymg notes
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

- The finandial statemens of the City of Nevada, Missouri (the City), have been prepared in
. conformify with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government
 units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the accepted standard-seiting body
~The mor

for_establishing govermental accounting and financial reporting principles. ~ Th
_significant of the City's accounting policies are described below:

Reporting Entity: The City of Nevada, Missouri,
- State of Missouri. - Nevada is a charter city and operates under a CouncillManager form o
- government and provides such services as are authorized by its charter to advance the welfare
- heatth, comfort, safety, and convenience of the City and its inhabitants. The City Manager is
. the chief administrative officer of the City. The accompanying financial statements present the
. City’s primary government and any component units over which the City exercises significant
- influence. _Significant influence or accountabilty is based primarily on operational or financial

- relationships with the City (as distinct from legal relationships). Management has considered all

~ potential component units and has determined there are no entities outside of the primary

~ government that should be blended into or discretely presented with the Citys financial

L i

- The accounting and reporting policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting
- principles applicable to local govemments. With regard to FASB pronouncements issued after
.+ November 30, 1989, for its proprietary fund activities, the City has elected not to adopt any of
. those pronouncements. The City has also refrained from implementing FASB pronouncements

© . issued after November 30, 1989. - e

 GovemmentWide and Fund Financial Staternents: he government-wide financial statements
- include the statement of net position and the statement of activities. - Govemment-wide
. statements report information on all of the activities of the City and its component units. For

~ govemmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and govemmental revenues
- are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fee:

 andchargesforsupport.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the govemment-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes where the
amounts are reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and othe

charges between the government's water and sewer function and various other funcions of the
~ goverment, Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues




CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements {Continued):

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree o which the direct expenses of a given
function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with & specific function. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements. Non-major funds include other Special
Revenue and Capital Projects funds. The combined amounts for these funds are reflected in a
single column in the fund Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances. Detailed statements for non-major funds are presented with
Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules.

The City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 65, lfems
Previously Reporied as Assetfs and Liabilities, in the current year. The adoption of this
statement changed the recognition of bond issue costs. See Note 25 for additional information.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation: The government-wide
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Property taxes collected in advance of the levy are recorded as deferred
inflows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered {o be available
when they are collectible within the current period or socon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recognized when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, claims, and judgments
are reported only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expendltures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt are reported as other
fi nancrng sources. _



CITY OF NEVADA MISSOURI

NOTES TO _FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

' :':_._SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING' POLICIES '(Contlnued)'

f:;Franchlse ;-taxes hcenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
_considered fo be susceptible to accrual and. S0 have been. recogmzed as re
_current fi soal penod Charges for sales ' |

_:f:not measurable untll aotuaily recelved

i '3.: The_ government reponts the followmg major govemmental fund

.E.The General Fund is the przmary operating und : penditures fron h[s fund prov:de
..~ basic City services, such as' police and fire pl’OtECtiOI'I planning, mspectlon englneermg,};}i i

: '"-;gammal control, civil defense; ‘municipal court, and overall basic’ services such as ﬁnance_.{
: .--and data processmg, personnel and_general admlnlstrat:on-foffthe Ci P

S Revenue sources molude taxes whlc _mclude property::taxes _a!es Xes; n_d franch:se_%
- faxes. Other revenues include other: fees and licenses, and revenue gathered from the
_f_'.mumcnpal court and :nvestment earnmgs i

el -:_"speCIf'ed capﬁai projects fOI' the_ Parki

f; Propnetary fund Ievei ’r' nanc;al statements are used to account for activities, whlch are slmliart

- -those found in the private-sector. The measurement focus is: upon determination of_ net lncome .
f‘ nanclal posmon and cash ﬂows The Cnty’s propnetary:funds-are as follo" __ ' .

. ':'-'.Q:Water and Sewer Fund accounts _-_for' the-- provision of water and sewer serwces to the
: resldents of. the Clty AI! actlwtles necessary to provrde suoh se_r\_nces_ are accounted for

{;'Landf I! Fund acoounts for actlwtles of-the 'Iandf ]



CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Measurement Focus, Basis of Acbounting, and Basis of Presentation (Continued):

On the proprietary fund financial statements, operating revenues are those that flow directly
from the operations of the activity, i.e., charges fo customers or users who purchase or use
the goods or services of that activity. Operating expenses are those that are incurred to
provide those goods or services. Non-operating revenues and expenses are items such as
investment income and interest expense that are not a result of the direct operations of the
activity.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the govemment-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following
subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance.

Net Position - Government-Wide Statements: Net Position is displayed in three components:

(1) Net investment in capital assets: Consists of capital assets including restricted
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable
to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets.

(2) Restricted: Consists of restricted assets, reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources related to those assets, with constraints placed on the use either by (a)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of
other governments; or (b) law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

(3) Unrestricted: All Consists of the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the
determination of "net investment in capital assets” or the "restricted" component of
net position.

It is the City's policy to first use restricted net assets prior to the use of unresiricted net assets

when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net
assets are available.
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CITY OF NEVABA _MISSOURS

NOTES 'ro FINANCIAL ..__.TATEMENTS '

_:-.'1'1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING_POL!CIES (Contlnued)'i

;.The Speﬂdab|e:-.p0rhon "of the fund:'balance ':comprtses the remaining four dlassific:
restncted cornmitted assrgned _and unassrgned

__:._.I._:_.Egovemmems pr st
'_”'Ieglslatlon £

w through const;tutlonal""'_'rovrsrons or enabllng;;f

i Commrtted fund balance = These amounts oan only be used for specit"c purpose
S '_pursuant fo. constramts tmposed by formal. resolutlons or ordinances of the City Council- .
= the! government’s highest level of decision makmg authority. ‘Those commitied amounts:_f'{,:--jj-
. cannot be used for. any other. purpose unless the City Council ‘removes the specified use
by taking the same type of action’ imposing the commitment, This classification also
~“includes contractual obtlgatrons to the extent that existing resources.m'f-the fund have been. i
;a‘.specrt" caily commrtted for use :n satlsfymg those' 'ontractual fequireme i

2 -Assrgned fund balance Th:s olassrf‘ cation reflects the amounts constrained by the Clty s_.';:f
.+ “intent” to be used for: specrt’ ic purposes, but_ are neither restricted no mmitted.  The
L ';;._-j'.erty Council and. the City Manager have the _,-authorlty o assrgn_- ‘amounts to be used for.
" '.3_"-*-:-;Lspecrfrc purposes. Assrgned fund balance inciude all: remalnmg;fa ounts: (except negatlve e
-~ balances) that are reported in the governmental funds, other than the General Fund that_.;'f
="'-"___.f_-.]fare not classnf‘ ed as nonspendabie and are nelther restrlcted nor committed. :

o Unassrgned fund ba!ance Thls fund balance IS- he. resrdua! classr rcatson:;- or the Genera

. .f:-";-{:i.ﬁFund It is. atso used to report negatwe fund- alances in other goV' rnmental funds

'":When both restrrcted and unrestncted resources are. avatlable for use
" use externally. restricted resources first r-:-.-then unrestncted resource:
and unass:gned—m-order as needed :

itis the _fity’s polrcy to
m_mltted assrgned

¥




CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI

" NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):--

Budgets: The reported budgetary data represents the final approved budget after amendments
as adopted by the City Council. Annual operating budgets are adopted for the General Fund,
Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds, and Proprietary Funds. Missouri law requires
budgets to be adopted for all governmental funds. The City prepares its budgets on the modified
accrual basis of accounting for its governmental funds and the accrual basis for its proprietary
funds. The City Council has performed the following procedures in establishing the City’s budget:

(1) Prior to November 30, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

(2) Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
(3) Priorto January 1, the budget is legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance.

(4) The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within
any fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be
approved by the City Council. This constitutes the City’s legal level of budgetary control.

(5) Appropriations lapse at year-end, but may be reappropriated in the following fiscal year.

Pooled Cash, Investments, and Restricted Assets: State statutes authorize the City to invest in
banking institutions and obligations of municipalities, repurchase agreements, U.S. government
agency obligations, and obligations of the U.S. Treasury. Cash resources of the individual
governmental fund types are combined to form a pool of cash and invesiments. At
December 31, 2015, the City's cash was deposited in demand accounts, cerlificates of deposit,
Federal Home Loan Bank Notes, Federal National Mortgage Notes, Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation Notes, and U.S. Treasury Obligations. Investments with maturities of less
than one year are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. All investments are stated at
cost, which approximates fair value. Interest income on pooled cash and investments is
allocated based upon each fund's respective average cash batance,

Certain proceeds of federal grants are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet
because their use is limited by applicable grant agreements. Assets are also restricted for court
bonds, debt service reserve requirements, and refunding customer meter deposits.

%0



CITY OF NEVADA MiSSOURI |
NOTES TO F!NANCIAL STATEMENT. :

o .:::;SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT!NG POL!CIES :(Contrnued

. Statement of Cash Flows A statement of cash ﬂows__;ha been presented in’ accordance with.
- Governmental Accounting Standards Board_ Statement 9 for. the Proprietary Fund:  For
- purposes of the statement of cash ﬂows ‘demand deposits, and all highly liquid- lnvestmen

* (including  restricted - ‘assets) with a maturity of three ‘months or les whe ipurchased ar
i _‘gcons:dered to be cash equwatents

RN ;'_..Accounts Recesvabte Accounts'recelvabte for water and Sewer. services are. accounted.-for
1 the Water and Sewer Funds and include billed amounts as wellas an accrual for the earned. but’;___
. unbilled services' from the previous billing: date through December_ 31, 2015, Accounts

s '_-recelvable in the General Fund represents charges for the mowrng of- eeds ' nd f re protectron

i o Al accounts recewable are stated net of atlowances |

o mt_e@_lld_ Recelvables and Pavables Transactlons between funds that are. representatlve of
... cash overdrafts from pooted,cash and _rnvestrng"are "reported--as--‘rnterfund --recelvables _or
_.:-_;.payab{es D b : ; e

o _'_Interfund Transactlons Dunng the course of normal perations, the Crty has. transactrons_};f*z
. between funds, inctudrng expendltures and. transfers of resources to pro'vzde services and
- ‘construct assets. ‘Legally authorized transfers are treated as transfers and are rncluded in the
St results of operatlons of both Governmental and Pro 'neta' y -Fund : s v

S ________ﬂlnvento lnventory, WhICh consists prancipally' of mamtenance supplies, is vatu_ed'at cost usmg
. _the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) .method.  The costs of governmental fund type mventones are“
: '-':_':recorded as expendltures when purchased

B Caprtat Asset Capltal assets whrch mclude iand _buﬂdl_n and rmprovements equ;pment
Coand. mfrastructure assets (e.g., roads and bndges) are reported in the: applrcable govemment or:
EE R busrness—type activities  columns in the govemnment-wide statements. . Capital assets are

~ " defined as assets with a cost of $5 000 or more.. Capital assets are recorded at historical costif
- purchased or constructed ‘or at estimated historical cost if actual hlstorrcal cost is not avarlable i
_i';_-?!Donated caprtal assets are recorded at estlmated farr market value at the date of donatron

f;-_'_jThe costs of ncrmal malntenance and repalrs that do ot add to the _atue of the__ asset or
_'materiatly extend. the asset’s Irfe are not caprtahzed_ : i :




CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI
" NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):
Capital Assets (Continued):

All reported capital assets are depreciated. Improvements are depféciated over the remaining
useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation on all assets is computed using the
straight-line method over the following estimated lives:

Maijor Assets

Buildings 40 years
Plant, structure, and lines 50-60 years
infrastructure 50 years
Equipment and vehicles 3-10 years

GASB Statement 34 requires the reporting and depreciation of the new infrastructure
expenditures effective with the beginning of the implementation year.

Compensated Absences: Accumulated vacation and sick leave, that is expected to be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources, is reported as an expenditure and a
fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. Accumulated vacation and sick leave of
proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the benefits accrue
to employees. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations or retirements.

Long-Term_ Obligations: Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund
when due. For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected fo be financed from
expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund.
Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for
in those funds.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the
applicable appropriation, is employed as an exiension of the formal budgetary control.
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end, if any, are reported as reservations of fund balance for
subsequent year expenditures. When expenditures are incurred in subsequent years relating to
amounts previously encumbered, such amounts are, if material, reappropriated in the year
expended.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reportlng penod Actual results could dlffer from those estlmates



33'__'1_ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contrnued)

:3*;_actrvrty or from partres other than the Crty’s taxpayers are' reported as program revenues The
-__';“Crty has the followrng program revenues in each activity: i

: _:General governmen

- Municipal court
. Public. transportatron
Public safety
~-Animal control
.. Planning and zomng “Fees.
S .}_.,'Culture and recreatron . Fees and grants
B _..J_Street _t _.:Fees |

SRR Bermn_s For purposes of measunng the net pensaon lrabrirty deferred outﬂows of resources
.+ and deferred inflows of resources related 1o pensions, and pension’ expense, information about
o othe fi dumary net posmon -of the Missouri: Local Government Employees Retirement System
S (LAGERS). and - gdditions toldeductrons from LAGERS fi iduciary - net - pos;tzon have been
.. determined on the same basis as they are feported by LAGERS. For this. purpose, benefit -
_'-payments (mcludrng refunds of employee contnbutrons) are recognzzed when due and payable'_’f,-',.j..

;g:n accordance \Mth the. benef t terms !nvestments are reported at fair value CES

2 DEPOS!TSAND iNVESTMENTS';'. o

: "-'_:'-*At December 31 2015 the carrymg _amount 0 ___e Crtys -cash on hand, demand z;deposrts and S

- certificates of deposrt in financial institutions was $1,982, $2.013,848, and $3,010,539,

R :respectlvely “The bank balances of demand deposrts were: fulty insured with a comblnatron of

. FDIC] msurance and pledged collateral held in the name of the City. All deposrts:were held by a-.._--j; i

:':-'_.'-_:'_'3?: At December 31 2015 the Clty’s tnvestments consr ted of i

Money Market

: .: lnterest'Rate 'Rlsk'

S Interest rate nsk is the rssk that changes rnterest rates that wrl[ adverset 26 _
7+ - aninvestment. The City does not have a formal poilcy for interest rate risk. However, the City
7 does: ‘manage its exposure to fair value loss arising. from interest rate changes oninternally.
" invested funds by reviewing the porlfollo on an ongoing basis for changes in effective’ yield -
. amounts. The Crty has elected to use the segrnented trme dlstnbutton method of drsclosure for;;_
e -T_j-_';}lts mterestratensk R e e e L




CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI
 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued):
Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the City will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able o recover
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk of

~ investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the
City will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The City’s policy is to collateralize demand deposits with
securities held by the financial institution’s agent and in the City's name.

At December 31, 2015, the City had the following investments and maturities:

Invesirrent rdluifies (invears)
bess
\Ae enoe 15 >5
Investment fype
Moreyrerdet $ 10”251 $ 10281 § - % -
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Credit risk is measured using credit qualﬁy ratings of investments in debt securities
as described by nationally recognized rating agencies such as Standard & Poor's and Moody's.
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss atiributed to the magnitude of investment in a
single issuer.

Missouri State Statutes authorize the City, with certain restrictions, to deposit funds in open
accounts, time deposits, and certificates of deposit. Statutes also require that collateral
pledged have a fair market value equal to 100% of the funds on deposit, less insured amounts.
Collateral securities must be held by the City or a disinterested third party and must be of the
kind prescribed by statutes and approved by the State. The City may purchase any
investments allowed by the State Treasurer. These include (a) obligations of the United States
government or any agency or instrumentality thereof maturing and becoming payable not more
than three years from the date of purchase, or (b) repurchase agreements maturing and
becoming payable within 90 days secured by U.S. Treasury obligations or obligations of U.S.
government agencies or instrumentalities of any maturity, as provided by law.

The City's general credit risk policy is to apply to prudent person rule: Investments shall be
made with the exercise of that judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which
individuals of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own
affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, consrdering the probablllty safety of thelr capatal
as we!l as the probable lncome to be derlved . . o g



:'ffAt December 31 2015 the carrymg value of ;deposzt 'and Jinvestments are summanzed as
: ffollows e

- 1h\ieet;ﬁ'é'ﬁt's'l. o
: Money markets:__ .

_ Certlt” cates ef deposrt
Cash on han_d o

Total . 099130 . . .

. Deposns and investments of the Clty are reﬂected m the 'govern'_

- -wide financial statements

Government—wrde statement of net_assets [
- Pooled cash and mvestments S
Restrlcted cash e

Loy ;-'fAccoums RECE]VABLE

: | i' '._'{As a result of prcwding water and samtatzon serv:ces toits crtlzens Fthe Clty..- _as-extended credl
e fo them. ‘Accounts recelvable are presented net of allowance for doubtfu! accounts of $3 300
[ for the Water& Sewer Fund ] ' : |




CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL ASSETS:

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2015, consisted of the following:

Balance Balance
1/1/2015 Additions  Refirements  12/31/2015
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 732429 $ - % - § 732429
Construction in progress 3,785,577 43,491 3,785,577 43,491
Total capital assets not being depreciated 4,618,006 43,491 3,785,577 775,920
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 7,257,683 4,779,631 - 12,037,214
Equipment and vehicles 4,895,009 298,007 - 5,183,016
Software 285,088 - - 285,088
Infrastructure : 9,462,827 779,117 - 10,241,944
Total capital assets being depreciated 21,900,507 5,856,755 - 27,757,262
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 3,024,369 252,572 - 3,276,941
Equipment 3,505,585 332,753 - 3,838,338
Software 275,466 3,648 - 279,114
Infastructure 1,833,955 360,882 - 2,194,837
Total accumulated depreciation 8,639,375 940 855 - 9,689,230
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 13,261,132 4,906,900 - 18,168,032

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 17779138 $ 4,950,391 § 3,785,577 $ 18,943,952

Depreciation expense was charged to the function/programs of the primary government as
follows:

Government activities:
General government $ 146,977
Police 82,746
Fire 101,421
Culture and recreation 265,831
Airport 202,132
Street 150,748

Total depreciation expense, governmental § 949,855
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CITY OF NEVADA MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIA 'STATEMENTS

: CAPITAL ASSETS (Contlnued)

e -._-:'_-.-::;Capltal asset act:wty for the year ended December' 31 2015, consisted
-"(Contanued) T : o

of the following.

Balance

'_Busmess-type actwn ies:
Capltaf assets not: belng depreclated
-+ Land and improvements -
Construct:on in progress’ -+

_:-.-TotaI cap;tal asssts not bemg deprecxated

e Caplta! assets bemg depremated o
*'Buildings - o

Eqmpment and vehlctes

" Plant, structure, &lines -

L _';_'33Tota! capltal assets bemg deprec’ated :

11,102,676 130,140 11232 3161:'

S Less accumulated dspreclatlon
“ ‘Water and sewer

:Tctal accumulated depreciat{on :

12,796,266
12,796,266

13637636

L _.:.rTqi_al jcap_it_al a_s'set_s:_bsing _deprecia_té_d','fﬁét___ 20,490,050 20.113552 i

" Business.typs actiles capltal assets, net 320 21g0200



- - CITYOF NE\_IADA, Mlssoum'
" NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. PENSION PLAN:
General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description: The City of Nevada’s defined benefit pension plan provides certain retirement,
disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The City of Nevada
participates in the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS).
LAGERS is an agent multiple-employer, statewide public employee pension plan established in
1967 and administered in accordance with RSMo. 70.600-70.755. As such, it is LAGERS
responsibility to administer the lfaw in accordance with the expressed intent of the General
Assembly. The plan is qualified under the Internai Revenue Code Section 401(a) and is fax
exempt. The responsibility for the operations and administration of LAGERS is vested in the
LAGERS Board of Trusiees consisting of seven persons. LAGERS issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. This
report may be obtained by accessing the LAGERS website at www.molagers.org.

Benefits - provided: LAGERS provides retirement, death, and disability benefits, Benefit
provisions are adopted by the governing body of the employer, within the options available in
the state statutes governing LAGERS. All benefits vest after 5 years of credited service.
Employees who retire on or after age 60 (55 for police and fire) with 5 or more years of service
are entitled to an allowance for life based upon the benefit program information provided below.
Employees may retire with an early retirement benefit with a minimum of 5 years of credited
service and after attaining age 55 (50 for police and fire) and receive a reduced allowance.

2013 Valuation
Benefit Multiplier: 1.5%
Final Average Salary: 5 years
Member Contributions: 0%

Benefit terms provide for annual post retirement adjustments to each member’s retirement
allowance subsequent to the member’s retirement date. The annual adjustment is based on
the increase in the Consumer Price Index and is limited fo 4% per year.

Employees covered by benefit terms. At June 30, 2015, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 87
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 49
Active employees ' 73

' 209

£



- Contributions: The employer is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarial
. determined rate, as established by LAGERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated
- amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with a
additional amount to finance an unfunded accrued liability.  Full-time employees of th

~employer do not contribute to the pension plan. Employer contribution rates are 10% Gene

12.7% Police, and 7.5% Fire of annual covered payroll. =

: f_ and the total pension liability used to. calcul ato the net pension liabilty was e .

- Actuarial assumptions; The total pension liabilty in the February 28, 2013, actuarial valuation
~ was detormined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

0 nmefon oo

 Moraly rates were baset on the 1984 Group A
~ malesandfemales.

- The actuarial assumptions used in the February 28, 2013, valuation were based
8,2010,

.  of an actuarial experience study for the period March 12008 hoeh Farian

~ The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was determined using'a -

- model method in which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of retum

- (expected retums, net of investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major

 assetclass. These ranges are combined to produce the i) o dovsioed o eeh major,

. weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
- ofretum for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

. Target  Long-Term Expected
- AssetClass  Allocation  Real Rate of Return
Equity =~ 485% =

FixedIncome  25%




CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI

" NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. PENSION PLAN {Continued):

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 7.25%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that employer and
employee contributions will be made at the rates agreed upon for employees and the actuarially
determined rates for employers. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’'s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to pay all projected future benefit payments of current
active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payment to determine the total

pension liability.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension
Liability
(a)

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

(c)

Net Pension
Liahility
(a) - (b)

Balances at 6/30/2014 $ 14,741,334 $ 17,359,564 $ (2,618,230)
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 287,548 - 287,548
Interest 1,047,094 - 1,047,094
Difference between expected and actual experience {1,079) - {1,079)
Contributions - employer - 292,173 {292,173)
Contributions - employee - 18,290 (18,280)
Net investment income - 329,923 (329,923)
Benefit payments, including refunds (895,495) {895,495) -
Adminisirative expense - (17,988) 17,988
Other changes - {248,478) 248,478
Net changes 438,068 {521,575) 959,643
Balances at 6/30/2015 $ 15179402 $ 16,837,980 $ (1,658,587)

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate: The foliowing presents
the Net Pension Liability of the employer, calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well

as what the employer's Net Pension Liability would be using a discount rate that is 1

percentage point lower

Current Single Discount

6.25% or one percentage point higher 8.25% than the current rate.

1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
6.25% 7.25% 8.25%
Total Pension Liability (TPL) $ 17,176,806 $ 15,179,402 $ 13,622,547
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 16,837,989 16,837,989 16,837,989
Net Position Liability/(Asset) (NPL) $ 338,817 $ (1,658,587) $ (3,315,442)
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CITY OF NEVADA MISSOURI

NOTES T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

5 PENSION PLAN (Contmued)

';_:._ﬁ.-”z'_'1:_"__5-:Pensmn Expense and Deferred Outﬂows f -:Resource and Deferred'- flows
S fResources Related to Pensmns

For the year ended December”31 2015 the' emPIOyer"? ec gnlzed penSIon expense of: :
;$544 838. The employer reported deferred outﬂows R
jpensnons from the foliownng sources

i 'i_:_."-'D!fferences in exper:ence | b

. Differences in assumptions ©
- Excess (defi icit) investment retums : i
Contnbutlons subsequent to the measurement date* i
Total S Sl

i _contr:butlons_ E

""'.""i'--:,_--**The amount reported as deferred outfiows cf resources resultmg from o
a reduot;on zn the Net Pens:on j;ff

subsequent to the measurement date will be recogntzed'
L "".:-::Llablllty for the year endlng December 31 2016 e

S --Amounts reported as deferred outﬂows and mflows of resources related to_ pensmns wm be.ff--_'.-'j"-:'_
L --_j-reoognlzed in penszon expense as foIIows e . . il

Net Deferred Outﬂows_'

Year Endmg of Resources

.-_._,____-.2016_:_-_:.... $ S 2623'-';“;
2019 0

2020

o ii::_-j'706 978

'f.’Payable!Asset to the Pensmn Plan = | . S
' At December 31 2015 the Clty reported an asset of $ 1 658 587 for .the outstandlng amou r
' of contrlbutlons to the pensmn plan reqwred for the year ended Deoe ber 31 2015 '




CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI

 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM DEBT:
Changes in long-term debt of the City for the year ended December 31, 2015, consisted of the
following:
Governmental Activities
Balance Balance Amounts Due
January 1, December 31, Within One
2015 Additions Retirements 2015 Year
" Bonds payable $ 56602 $ - 3 4214 $ 52478 § 4,374
Cerlificates of
participation 4,900,000 - 165,000 4,735,000 210,000
Notes payable 66,750 - 27,097 39,663 27835
Capital leases 551973 155,585 94,340 613,218 139,184
5575415 155,585 280,651 5,440,349 381,393
Other liabilities,
Compensated
absences * 151,567 60,918 42,239 170,246 42,239
$ 5726982 § 216503 % 332890 § 5610595 § 423,632
Business-Type Activilies
Balance Balance Amounts Due
January 1, December 31, Within One
2015 Additions Retirements 2015 Year
Revenue bonds $ 9410000 $ - 3 545000 % 8865000 § 555,000
2015 SRF Loan - 1,364,800 - 1,364,800 -
Capital leases 187,014 248,138 59,948 375,204 95,324
9,597,014 1,612,938 604,948 10,605,004 650,324
Other liabilities,
Compensated
absences 2,544 877 2,544 877 877
$ 9599558 % 1613815 § 607,492 § 10,605,881 $ 651,201

* Amounts are primarily liquidated through the general fund
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C!TY OF NEVADA MISSOURI

s _f_i_-NOTES T0'-'-FINANCIAL ' TATEMENTS

'_:_’ZLONG-TERM DEBT (Contlnued

s ﬁ':'amounts is reported zn governmental funds only i they have 'matured *foi' xample, as a result
.:‘-__-_-:-_'of employee resrgnatlon  an

:_':_'_"_'$96 940 Serzes 2005A nelghborhood rmprovement dlstr C d, iss
R __-road and curb lmprovements due in annu_al mstat ne

$4 150 000 Senes 2011 certlf‘ cates of partrcrpation ssued .for constructron
'_'::;-of aPublic. Safety Bu:ldrng, due in annua! mstallments of el

S '_ _'_'$895 000 Serles 2012 certrt" cates of parttcrpatron Issued for. constructlon sl
ioofa Publlc Safety Burldlng and payments of 2011 certn‘" cates of partrcipatron

- | - due in annual mstallments of $40 000 to $75 000 through December 2031;°
"3_3’_|nterestat2%to4% L o

_' i '$160 000 Senes 2013 refundlng certr’r" cates 'o partrcrpatron is tore
.;.-Senes 2011 certrf cates of partlclpatron due in annual mstatlments o o
et :":'-_$8 800 to $8 922 through December 2032 :nterest at55%

_'j:_$250 00: Star Loan wrth MODOT 1ssued for- airpo _runway |mprovem
. duein monthty mstallments of $2 380 through May 20 int

. Totalgovernmental funds

5 4813t




CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):
Proprietary fund:

$12,000,000, Series 2007B Waterworks and Sewerage System Revenue Bonds
(State Revolving Fund Program), due in annual installments of $500,000 o
$715,000, through January 1, 2029; interest at 4% to 5% $ 8,865,000

$2,722,000, Series 2015 Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System
Revenue Bonds (State of Missouri - Direct Loan Program), due in
semni-annual installments through July 1, 2035; interest at 1.3% 1,364,800

* Total proprietary fund $ 10,229,800

Aggregate annual principal and interest payments applicable to long-term debt are;

Years ending NID
December 31, Principal Interest Bonds
2016 $ 4,374 $ 2,079 $ 6,453
2017 4,540 1,902 6,442
2018 4,719 1,723 6,442
2019 4,905 1,537 6,442
2020 5,099 1,343 6,442
2021-2025 28,841 3,493 32,334
3 52,478 $ 12,077 ) 64,555
Certificates
Years ending of
December 31, Principal Interest Participation
2016 $ 210,000 $ 186,379 $ 396,379
2017 220,000 181,668 401,668
2018 225,000 176,481 401,481
2019 230,000 170,810 400,810
2020 240,000 164,281 404,281
2021-2025 1,310,000 695,195 2,005,195
2026-2030 1,605,000 403,651 2,008,651

2031-2033 695,000 56,388 751,388

§ 4735000 § 2034853 $ 6769853

5 _..44. _



- Bond Reserve ACCOUntS

G _-_'Under the Senes 2007B Combmed WaterworksISewerage System Revenue Bonds (State
“" Revolving Fund. Program), the City is required to- deposit monies into a debt service accoun
. sufficient to meet maturity dates of prmmpal and interest. . Further, after: prov:dmg funds fo

. current: operatrons and principal and interest, excess funds’ will be: deposrted monthly into a

- :'::"'?':-;Rates and fees. estab!rshed ” 'and charged' were  sufficient to
S responsrbrirtres for the sewer fund for the year ended December 31 2015_ i

CITY OF NEVADA MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o

e

0 Yearsendng -
__Decemberdt, = . Principal = .

389,526
367, 126_;

- -_'-.--;.2019 _.-5-_1__{5_585 000
2020 © 595,000
2021005 3,180,000

S -:-;:_'f 2026»2029 2, 815,000

291, 579_’;:j"
1,047,784
268,134

! $ ases oooff{'_l_.f‘ ?-3;0'2'6;9_7?6

$ 11 391 976 S

Constructron for the 2015 SRF loan pmJect has not yet been completed as of"Deoember 31
©.2015. The final loan payback amortization will be. establrshed at pro;ect completron No annual
pnncrpa! or. lnterest payments are belng shown rn the notes.

. depreciation and replacement account until a balance_ of $461 030 i is reached. In addrtron the
_-_-__:-.Crty wrll make a monthly reserve deposrt untll a balance:of $356 :000 1s met" :

: "::._; ".-'-':At December 31 2015 the Clty was not |n complrance wrth_the d
i ::account requrrements |

atisfy .___bond | covenant




CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. CAPITAL LEASES:;
The City has entered into lease agreements for financing capital equipment. The lease
agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes, therefore have been recorded at
the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception date.

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Asset

Deep South Freightliner tanker $ 119,000
Mowers 30,250
Fire pumper truck 395,955
John Deere excavator 42.478
John Deere utility tractor 23,000
2014 Caterpillar backhoe 85,801
2014 Caterpillar skid steer 31,870
2014 Phone system 84,082
John Deere backhoe 60,628
2015 police vehicles 155,585
2015 equipment 248,138
Jetter Vac 85,000

Total assets acquired $ 1,361,787

The future minimum lease payments and the present vaiue of the remaining minimum lease
payments as of December 31, 2015, are as follows:

Years Ending

December 31,
2016 $ 253,859
2017 223,531
2018 184,894
2019 184,273
2020 140,804
2021 55,451

1,042,812

Less: amount representing interest 54,390
Present value of future minimum
- lease payments - o § 988422 . -



CITY OF NEVADA MISSOURI |
NOTES TO FlNANC!AL STATEMENTS

8 'Z?E_::RESTRICTED CASH

e ' 'Munlcrpal court | g
Reserve for debt servrce e

$ 997,015

1078507

e _-_{f LEGAL MATTERS

R :;There are a number of cialms andlor Iawsunts to whrch the Clty :s a party as a result of certam_f;
- 'law enforcement activities, injuries, and various other matters and ccomplaints arising in'the
e ordmary course of City activities. The Clty’s management and Iegal counsel believe that the
" potential claims against the City not covered by .insurance, rf any' resultzng"from such matters S
would not matena!ly aﬁ’ect the f nanmalt-posrtron of the City. o o

10 TAX REVENUES

L The tax revenue mciudrng lnterest and penaltres collected'
| _ December 31 2015 Is as follows

oo Specral
Sl e General Revenue i
Tvpe Fund Funds

G :-.___Prope,-ty : .: . :__;_$ 881 950__._ $ : 198,206 :
. Raircad L4959 14510
Franchlse g .' j SR '1_','462,'1_:38.‘ G L
ParkSales
= E"l‘remsportatton Sales
i Oecupancy

S s -4."007',669"::;:‘jf_---:$_'-:'-:- 1918241$ <
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CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI
'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'10. TAX REVENUES (Continued):

The assessed valuation of the 'ta'ngib[e property for the purpose of local taxation as of
May 31, 2015, was as follows:

Real estate $ 69,874,234
Personal property 27,222 870
$ 97,097,104

The tax levy per $100 of assessed valuation of tangible real and personal property for the
calendar year 2015 was as follows:

General Fund $ 0.6778
Library 0.2000
3 0.8778

Property taxes may attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied
no later than November 1 and are due and payable at that time. All unpaid taxes levied by
November 1 become delinquent January 1 of the following year.

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS:

Interfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 2015, were as follows:

Receivable Payable
Special Revenue Funds: :
Special Projects $ 29,800 $ -
Park - 29,800

$ 29,800 b 29,800
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CITY OF NEVADA MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL srATEMENTsi_-;'_'_'-:_5;'_?.;*_.5. .

§5*_§ 11 INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Contmued)

i ;_-_'__Transfers durrng the year_ended_ December 31 _0_'!5

_ Transfers :

3‘Genera| Fund :

SR ;Spec1al Revenue Funds
i Speclal PrOJects

S Street
;Tounsm. | R

_'_-.-Park's

SRR -.._Caprtal Pro;ects Funds

" Parks constructron

o '_:Propnetary Fund, ' RN e

Water and sewer i

e ._In general transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that coilec -the'money tc the S
-~ fund that expends the money, (2) move recerpts restricted or. eannarked for debt service from _'__'j:;
7. the funds ccltectmg the - recerpts to the debt . service fund as debt service: payments become:

- due, and (3) use unrestricted’ revenues collected in a fund- to provrde cperatlng advances toi

3 :'._[‘other funds in accordance wrth budgetary authcnzatrcns ' S : =




CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE:

Intergovernmental revenue during the year ended December 31, 2015, consisted of the

following:
Other
General Governmental
Fund Funds
Federal:
US Depariment of Justice:
Stop Violence Against Women $ 28,491 $ -
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing 8,766 -
Bullet Proof Vest Grant 2,368 -
US Department of Transportation:
Airport Fuel Fagcility - 38,209
Highway Planning and Construction 84,521 -
Formula Grants for Other Than Urbanized 42,809 -
HMV Enforcement 6,822 -
DWI Enforcement 3,082 -
State:
Department of Revenue;
Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax - 328,046
Motor Vehicle Fees - 14,230
Taxi Grant 45,826 -
Other State Grants - 589

$ 222685 $ 381,074
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: cmr oF NEVAeA MISSOURI "
NOTES 'ro FtNANCIAL STATEMENTS

f_:_f:13 RISK MANAGEMENT

o here have been no significant reductions in llnsuran '
_.f_coverage from the pnor year and nc srgnlf cant losses ,1_ he. past_three fiscal y ears S

2 X The _Clty' 'is a:'mernber of the zMPR (formerly MARCIT), a not-for—proﬁt corporation consrstmg 0
: “'-'j'_-:_:;_:governmenta! entities rncorporated in 1984 to acqunre insurance for its members. = MP
- operates as a purchasrng pool and is not a jo:nt venture: actlvrty of the Ci

e ty. The City has no
" control over budgetmg, financing, management selectron orthe governing b ly. MPR prowdes-"f“ -
.. both conventional and " self-insurance ‘coverage for its members mcludmg ‘medical, ‘dental,
i -_-i_iproperty casualty, general. liability, and workers' ‘compensation. The City. particlpates in-

L :;property casualty general Ilabthty and workers ‘compensation insurance coverages

SIS _iMPR manages the cash and lnvestment poo! fu __de___. by msurance premlums -.on behalf of its
.~ members. MPR’s investment pool consists of interest bearlng deposits, U.S. Treasury strips,
US. governmental agency oblrgatrons and cotlateralrzed ‘morigage cb!rgatrons In'the event -
' that'a deficit occurs with respect fo- any fi fiscal year of MPR for which the City was a participant at'__f”_-
o any time during such year; and in the event that MPR. deten'nm_es that an assessment is
S f:':_'requrred in order to provide addltlonal funds for the obligati of- MPR for. such year; and.
oo further, in the event that the City: was covered by the types of benefits requiring the assessment
o *_}_g_durmg the time penod in which the assessment arose, ‘the C;ty is cbllgated to pay its prorata :
.= . share of any. such asseesment lrrespectwe of whether or not the City is r_nember of MPR at L
© . . the time of such assessment, ‘Management of the City is not. aware of any defi clt_ sntuation r :
Sl ':_;MPR whrch would requ:re an accrual of a tlabzhty as of December_S 2015. R

S L MPR’s f nancral statements are presented rn lts Cc _
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CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI.
~ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN: |

The City offers its full-time employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan permits them to defer a portion of their
salary untit future years. Participation in the plan is optional.

Employees may contribute up to 25% of their annual base salary to a maximum limit of
$16,500 per year. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death, or an unforeseeable emergency. Investments are managed by the plan’s
trustee, and the choice of the investment option(s) is made by the participants.

The City does not make a contribution for employees participating in the pian

COMMITMENTS:
The City had approximately $1,014,667 of construction commitments at December 31, 2015.
NET POSITION:

Net position is comprised of three categories: Net investment in capital assets; the restricted
component of net position; and the unrestricted component of net position. The first category
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are atiributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets as well as any unspent related debt
proceeds. The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets, (usually
cash) that must be spent for specific purposes. The unrestricted component of net position is
the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the
restricted component of net position.

The City issued debt to finance the construction of infrastructure in the Water and Sewer Fund.
The unspent bond proceeds are reported in the restricted component of net position.

Capital assets, net $ 40,485,031
Total debt (15,890,284)
Bond discounts 59,617
Unspent bond proceeds 1,278,323
Net investment in capital assets _$ 25032687

s



18 PLEDGED REVENUES

o The Clty has pledged a portlon of rts sales tax to repay |ts certrt“ cates.of-;-partrcrpatron Th
. outstanding principal on these certificates as of December 31, 2015, amounted to $4,735,000

- The certificates were used for the construction of the new fire station and annexation of polrce
" municipal court, and councrl chambers to Clty HaII ‘Principal and ;nterest'--pazd-for the curren
"--*_'-_yearrs$355106 T S o

e LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST CLOSURE CARE COSTS:

i ';The Clty off crally o[osed the pubirc Iandt' I :'on_ Octo

C!TY OF NEVADA MISSOURI

NOTES T0 FINANCIAL sr' T

2,1993. State and Federal laws and

S -Z:;'J-areguiatlons required the City to place a final cover on its landfill when closed and perform

© .. . certain maintenance and ‘monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure.
... The estimated. liability for. post closure care costs, whlch consrsted of the estimated cost of all

_equipment, facilities, and services’ Ttequired to close, monitor, and __marntam the landfill for this

e i “thirty year period was $1,283,200, which was recorded as a fia b1I|
_::'-'_:_igremammg Elablllty at December 31 2015 r $_191 6'

s ;'"Substanhaliy aII of the Crtys water and sewer utrhtres are subje_ct--“to federat and state
" regulations relating to the discharge of materials into the envirohment.
SO ﬁ;'-provrsmns has not had; nor does the City expect such compliance to have. any material effect
'~ “upon the fi nancial condrtlon of the City.. Management of the: Crty believes that its ‘curren
. ... practices and procedures for the oontrot and drsposrtlon of_such wastes comply wrth al
S -:,'.;applloable federal and state requrrements SR B SR

oon '_;FEDERAL AND STATE GRANTS

Gl -The Crty partrc:pates rn a number of federal and state grant programs that are. futly or partrally
- funded by grants recewed from other govemmentat units. Expendrtures fi nanced by grants are
' subject fo audit by the: grantor government. . If expendltures are disallowed due to
- noncompliance with’ ‘grant program- reguliations, the City may be. requrred to reimburse. the

' grantor. government ‘As of December 31, 2015, a. ‘significant amount of grant expenditures_-;.--_
7+ have not been audrted by grantor governments but the City believes that disallowed
;'expendltures if any, based upon oversight by the governmental unrts will not have a matenal o

A .effect on any of the governmental funds or the overatl t” nanoral posntron of the Crty :

LG CONTINGENCIES

in the Landfil Fund Thei;__f

'mplrance with these
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CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI
NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE CONTRACT:

On December 28, 2010, the City entered into a contract with Alliance Water Resources, Inc. to
perform certain operation and maintenance services at the City's water and wastewater plants.
For 2015, compensation under the amended agreement shall be $1,586,948 annually, with an
aliowable reimbursement amount of $167,200 annually for repairs and chemicals.

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS:
Plan Descripfion

The City sponsors a single-employer, defined benefit healthcare plan that provides healthcare
benefits to retirees and their dependents, including medical and dental coverage. Participants
include retirees of the City.

The City requires the retirees to pay the carrier-charged premium. The rates being paid by
retirees for benefits are typically lower than those for individual health insurance
policies. The difference between these amounts is the implicit rate subsidy, which is
considered other post-empioyment benefits (OPEB) under Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 45 (GASB Statement 45). The City has chosen fo
prospectively implement GASB Statement 45.

'Rétirees and their dependents have the same benefits as active employees. The retiree

may continue coverage until death. Spousal coverage is available until the retiree becomes
covered under another employer health plan, attains Medicare eligibility age, or 36 months
after the death of the retiree dies under Cobra law.

Funding Policy

GASB Statement 45 does not require funding of the OPEB liability, and the City has chosen
not fo fund it. City policy dictates the payment of retiree claims as they become due.



~ liabilty over a period not to exceed 30 years. The following table shows the components o
. the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the pian, and

~ changes nthe Giy's net OPE obigation

. Amortizationofunfunded =
. actuarialaccrued liabilty

 Annualrequired contribution (ARC)

. Intereston net OPEB obligation
 Adjustment to annual required contribution

" Contributions made, |

. Balance at December 31, 2014
~ Netemployer contributions

 NetOPEB obligation, December 31, 2015
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CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI
NOTES TO F!NANCIAL STATEMENTS :

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued):

The retirees annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the
plan and the net OPEB obligation for the year ended December 31, 2015, is as follows:

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB

Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2013 $ 38,815 56.7% $ 132,003
2014 $ 36,133 36.0% $ 155,136
2015 $ 36,133 30.0% $ 180,269

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial accrued liabifity
for benefits within the plan for the City is $265,421. There are no assets set aside for
funding the plan as of that date, thus the entire amount is unfunded. The covered payroll
{(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $2,558,451, which results in
a ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) to the covered payroll of 10.4%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future,
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare
cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funding status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following
the notes to the basic financial statements, presents trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.

o



25, POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued)

L :::f - basis. - The UAAL will be amortized over a period of 30 years using a level percentage of
_projected payrollonanopenbasis. o 0 T T

 The Ciy s valated subsequent overts rough Jly , 2016

T  3: Change lnaccountmgprmmple -'j_':{‘.?;:_:_._;': .

A adiustment was necsssary to resate beginning nt posion fo the LAGERS net pension

~The projected unit credit actuarial cost method is used in the July 1, : ctuari:
- valuation. ‘At this valuation date, actuarial present value of benefits is determined for eac
- participant, - The sum of these actuarial present values of benefits allocated to the curren
. valuation year is the normal cost for the initial plan year. The sum of actuarial present value
- +.of benefits allocated to all valuation years preceding the valuation date repre
actuarial accrued liabifity, . .

. The ‘actuarial assumptions include a 4:5% investment rate of retum. ctuari;
. -assumptions for healthcare cost trend is a growth factor of 7% for the first year and then
. declining by .25% per year until 5% is reached. The 5% growth is used on a go-forward

EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

. y 1, 2013, actuari

ate represents th

The  actuarial

‘the d atewhlchthe ﬁnanclai

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT: =

; liability.  The adjustment is due to the City complying with “Governmental Accounting

. Standards Board (GASB) Statement no. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension —an -

- Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for

a_:nd__bU'Sin_'_e_SSf'.t.YPQ a Qtivit_ies:’__ S

. Netpensionasset 2685462
~ Adjusted Net Position beginning

. Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an Amendment of GASB Statement
. No. 68. The following table represents the change in net position for governmental activiies

Businesstype

s15810721

stagonrt
$13.208401

. $18496,183
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: CITY OF NEVADA MISSOURI
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

o Schedule of Changes m_Net Pensmn (Asset) ablh

'.;'Flscal year endmg June 30
. Total Pensmn Lrablhty
. Service Cost S -
" Interest on the Total Pensnen Llablhty b
- Benefit Changes -
I Difference between expected and actual expenence
'*Assumptlon Changes e i S
 BenefitPayments -~ - S
_-_-","ﬁ'__;-}Refunds e
S Net Change in Total Penslon L:ablhty
Saan - Total Pension Llablhty begmmng "
e 'Totai Penston L:abihty endmg

438068
T 14,741,334
T 15179402

e __Plan Ffduc:ary Net Posmon
.1 - Contributions-employer :
_-_i--.---:':_-“Contnbutlons-employee LR
.- Pension Plan Net Investment mcome o
. Benefit Payments R S
7 Refunds . S
SRR __{-:Pensmn Plan Admlnlstratlve expense
" Other | . S
S Net Change in Plan deuclary Net Posltlon
. Plan Fiduciary Net Position begmmng
e 2 Plan FIdt.lClal'y Net Posltlon endmg

5 16 837 989

S ':Empioyer Net Pens:on (Asset) Llablllty

'(1_.-658,587) g

g Plan Flduclary Net Posltlon as a percentage of the &
: 3;Tota! Penslon Llabthty s .

:_Covered Employee Payro!l G
f;;j‘Emponers Net Pension (Asset) Llablhty as a percentage
-of covered employee payrol! SR E

-;Notes to schedule CommEmm e
- Only the 2015 year is bemg shown as other years come avallable they
;_._.-.years ofdata is shown R

il be included unti 10
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L GENERALFUND . - -
- -FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEGEMBER 31, 2016

- Licenses and permiis B
; lnlargovemmen!ai ;
* Changes rorservbces
‘Fees and fines - S
L Investmentaarnfngs
[ -'-;_Other LA

28,386
192,500

: 4,698,738
EXPENDITURES-'
Cm'mnl. B
-"Genaralgovammam; :

- Municipal court : :
. Publictransponahon 433,892
- Public safety - S S R,548,492

_'-Emargencymanagemen! ST SR T 440
“Animel control . R LT .'13_4.028

1318602
- 131,881

; "'113333 5
15134

- - Planning and zomng
B Debl sewioe
- Principal
Inlarssl and o:her charges

1248240
: 17sso12 G

233327 RRRIEEOR R -
. —-—m—l— — 9. 6 ..: i 818 °
ST

Excess (deﬁmency)ofrevanues aver expandnures Cl42,023,186)

OTHER FINANGING SOURGES (USES)

- Proceeds from long»lenn debt -

S Pmceedsfmmcapﬂal leases i [ :

- Procseds from sale of capnlaI asets ©..18,000 .
- Fransfersin - : R I e 543,109

CTransfersout Gl Lol PR P MR SRR |-

3 Tvtai otherﬁnanoing soumes and uses Ao s oA adg i

180070
188,000

Natchangefnfundbalances : 229 ;

Fundhatanees beglnnlng TR '-'_i,ég'g.gﬂ: 3

Fundbalances endmg TR 81475683 § 1475603 _(esdgen)




CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOUR.
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE --

STREET FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Varlance with
Actual Final Budget
Amounts, Positive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis {Nogative}
Originat Final
REVENLUES:
Taxes $ 752,500 $ 752,500 $ 810,884 $ 58,384
Intergovernmental 345,100 345,100 342,276 (2.824)
Investment earnings 4,000 4,000 11,402 7,402
Miscellaneous 11.000 11.000 3428 (7.572)
1,112,600 1,112,600 1,167,880 56,390
EXPENDITURES:
Street 390,767 390,767 426,533 (35,766)
Capital outlay 768,504 768,504 691,350 67,154
Debt service;
Principal 11,671 11,571 11,566 5
. Interest and other charges 1,158 1,158 1,163 {5)
1,162,000 1,162,000 1,130,612 31,388
~ Excess (deficlency} of revenues over expenditures _______{49.400) {49.400) 37,378 86,778
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Proceeds from sale of assels 3,000 3,000 1,189 (1,811)
Capital contributions - - 150,000 150,000
Proceeds from capital leases 89,670 89,670 - (89,670}
Transfers in 7,800 7,900 20,049 12,149
Transfers out {58.052) (68,052) {67.752) (300)
Total other financing sources and uses - #2518 42518 113486 70,368
Net change in fund balances {6.882) {6.882) 150,864 157,746
Fund balances - beginning 1493657 493,65 1.493.657 -
Fund balances - ending $ 1,488,775 $ 1,486,775 § 1,644,521 $ 157.746
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CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE --
PARKS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Variance with

Final Budget
Actual Amounts, Positive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis (Negative)
Original Final
REVENUES:
Taxes $ 720,767 $ 720,767 $ 800,273 $ 79,506
Charges for services 381,050 381,050 331,733 (49,317)
Miscellaneous 500 500 6,024 5,524
1,102,317 1,102,317 1,138,030 35,713
EXPENDITURES:
Current;
Culture and recreation 1,361,231 1,361,231 1,125,831 235,400
Capital outlay 24,700 24,700 75,221 (50,521)
Debt service:
Principal 14,458 14,458 14,447 11
Interest and other charges 1,037 1,037 1,047 (10)
1,401,426 1,401,426 1,216,546 184,880
Accrual adjustments - - - -
1,401,426 1,401,426 1,216,546 184,880
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (299,109) (299,109) (78,516) 220,593
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Proceeds from capital leases 15,000 15,000 - (15,000)
Proceeds from sale of assets 2,500 2,500 - (2,500)
Transfers in 281,609 298,609 265,657 (32,952)
Transfers out - - (323) (323)
Total other financing sources and uses 299,109 316,109 265,334 (50,775)
Net change in fund balances - 17,000 186,818 169,818
Fund balances (deficit) - beginning (94.964) (94.964) (94,964) -
Fund balances (deficit) - ending $ (94,964) $ (77,964) $ 91,854 $ 169,818
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' CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI. .
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE —
PARKS CONSTRUGCTION.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Variance with
Actual Final Budget
Amounts, Posltive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basls {Negative)
Originat __ Fimal
REVENUES,
Tares $ 113,233 § 113,233 $ 75,081 $ (38,152)
EXPENDITURES,
Current;
Culture and recreation - - 298 (298)
Capital outtay 225,581 223,981 225 228,756
229,981 229,981 523 229,458
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (116,748) (116.748) 74,558 191,306
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES,
Transfers out — {28704 (20094) __ {29.194) -
Net change in fund balances (145,842} {145,942) 45,364 191,306
Funa balances - beginning —..220835  _ 239035 229935 -
Fund balances - ending 5 83,693 $ 83,993 $ 275,299 $ 191,306
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i eny oF NEVADA MISSOURI
o BUDGETARY COMPARISON SGHEDUI
Ly ' SPECIAL PROJECTS

- FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2015

Varlznce with
Final Budget

i Budgeted Amounm o
. on ginai _ '

- Budgetary Basis

;ff:REVENUEs b %
Investmentaamlngs
' _' Mlsce!laneous o

: OTHER Fnu\NcmG usas' o

Transfersout HQSOO)__ L

E_Z.Net change in fund balances' R (37 100) .f

Fund balances beglnnmg R B 849 337 .




 CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI. -
EBUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE --
LIBRARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Varlance with
Final Budget
Actual Amounts, Pasltive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis {Nagative}
Orlginal Final
REVENUES,
Taxes $ 215,466 § 215,466 3 212,716 $ (2,750)
EXPENDITURES,
Current,
Culture and recreafion 215,466 215,466 212,346 3,120
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures - - 370 370
Net change in fund balances “ - aro 370
Fund batances - beginning - - - -
Fund balances - ending $ - $ - 5 370 $ 370




BUDGETARY GOMPARISON SCHEDULE -~
'AIRPORT.FUND - :
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEM R 31 201 5

Variance wlth
F!nal Budget

Bud atod Amounts

“ Intergovernmental
_:Miscellaneous .

380,800

T

fEXPENDrrUREs e

- ‘Culiure and recreatlon L

. Capital outlay SRR
Dehtservice

. Principal . - S

!nterest and olhercharges R

10, 837_:
400000

i 28 565"_-? . :
5 :1 465) e

--_:_35_6,_321 "

Ao adusiments

430402’ 439400 szl

. (67.20%)

Deﬁclency ofrevenues overexl)enditures' —-«-@LEQ 8L, 21 e

. 31768

i 'o‘rHER FINANCING SOURCES
' Transfersin SRRy B
't‘ota! other f‘nanclng sources and uses _1 '

Nei change ln fund balances :

: : Fund balances beginning




REVENUES,

Charges for services

EXPENDITURES,
Current,

General government

" CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI

' BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE — -

.. JUDIGIAL EDUCATION FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures
Fund batances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Variance with
Final Budget
Actual Amounts, Positive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis {Negative)
Original Final
$ 2,300 $ 2,300 3 1,397 $ (903)
1,300 1,300 1,242 58
1,000 1.000 155 (845)
60 60 60 -
$ 1,060 3 1,060 $ 215 $ {845)




ST C!TY OF NEVADA M!SSQUR! S

' BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE ot
i - POST COMMISSION FUND e
: 'FOR THEYEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2015' o

B(L_geted Amounts -. S

: Budgetary Basls

o .REVENUES
: Charges for servioas

EE .”.EXPENDITURES,
Cument L
General govemment

Excass (deﬁcsency) ofrevenues over'_._-f-'_.':-'.-"" e
expendntures RSN K R

Netchange in fund ba!ances o '::'__ o 3900 i

| ;f_-f"':'_Fund ba!ances beglnnlng i

' -:-_Fund ba!ances endmg e R S $



CITY OF NEVADA, MISSOURI

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -
TOURISM FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

REVENUES:
Taxes
Contributions and donations
Investment eamings
Miscellaneous

EXPENDITURES,
Current;
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES,
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Varlance with
Final Budget
Actual Amounts, Positive
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis {Negative}
Original Final
$ 82,000 $ 82,000 $ 94,368 $ 12,368
4.800 4,900 5,647 747
17.300 17,300 13,703 (3,597)
104,200 104,200 113,718 9,518
104,264 104,264 78,029 26,235
3,000 3,000 7,278 (4,278)
107,264 107.264 85.307 21.957
(3.064) {3.064) 28,411 31,475
{31,961} {31.961) (33.678) 1,71
(35,025) (35,025) (5,267) 20,758
162295 162,285 162 295 -
$ 127,270 3 127,270 $ 157,028 i 29,758
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: CITY OF NEVADA M!SSOURI SHE
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE :
" NID » ASHLAND ESTATES SEWER FUND -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SR udgatad Amounts - ‘Budgetary Basis
gh BT P RN B Orlginal Final
:'E-REVENUEs SRR ' LT : o

" (4.288) -

'.EXPENDITURES :
Current T R e R
General government L e 80
Deb{semce S S B R R R SRDARETIARE St

Principal .- B DR T SV R R ey vy T

8 R Lo ame o
e |ntemtaﬂdothercharges S 2239 RSN 2239__-.:-: el

6613:'."_': S 6613_"_-“:

s :-_Excess (def‘ciency) ofrevenu&s overe)q:endltures e (g' 3131 fiF i (g.3_12\'

' '_ Fundbarances beglnmng - '. L ik 60032 . o

L _Fynd ba_lanc&_s-endln_g; : T : s Lot '5?.720_- Ll (4234) S







